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SRI CHAKRA CEMENT LIMITED

DIRECTORS' REPORT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANATYSIS REPORT

Dear Members,

We have pleasure in presenting this 37* Annual Report of the Company together with the Audited
Statements of Accounts, Management Discussion and Analysis for the year ended 31" March, 2019.

? ln Crs

Revenue from operations (Rs in Crs) t93.r7
Profit Before I iation and Taxes 7.38

Profit before tax 0.22

Tax Ex 0.10

Comprehensive lncome 1201.88

Total lncome 1213.83

During the year under review, compared to the performance of previous year, the clinker production
quantity has gone up by 8.1,8%, cement production was increased by 8.4I% and cement sale quantity was
increased by 9.Ot%. The revenue from operations was declined by 257% which is mainly due to, low price

realisation. The PBDIT was decreased by Rs 5.63 Crores due to increased coal cost, power cost etc. During
the year under review, the Company's profitability is impacted due to heavy competition created by the
major players in the industry by way of addition of huge capacities in and around the plant area. Howeveq
in order to meet such competition, your company has initiated efforts to reduce the cost of production on
account of power and fuel as a part of which the Company has already setup captive solar power
generation unit at Srikalahasti with a total installed capacity of 5 MW for with an investment of about Rs 30
Crores and further in the process of setting of wind power generation with an installed capacity of 6 mw,
which would contribute to the increased profitability of the company in the near future.
Cement Industry Structure, Developments and future outlook
During the year under review the world economy has shown a growth of over 3.5%, a very promising
growth trajectory. However in the long term any positive growth will have to be substantiated with
suitable trade and investment policies. The Indian scenario has also been promising and almost in line with
the growth of the world economy. The Government has announced a setfing up of affordable housing fund
and Prime Minister Awas Yojana scheme, consequent to which the interest rates for housing sectors will
come down providing relief to many and thereby the aim of Government in infrastructure development
will turnaround in the demand and growth of the Cement Industry. However having said this, with the
additional capacitiesthat have come up in various states, both greenfield and brownfield, have created a

scenario of extreme competition in the Cement Industry. The excess supply situation thus created would
further adversely impact the price realisation. The ever increasing cost of coal has also added to the stifling
scenario in the Cement Industry. Without su bstantial increase in demand in the last few years, the Cement
industry has been facing a twin fold blow, by not being able to absorb its fixed cost completely due to lower
capacityuti|izationsanddea|ingwithreducingpricerea|ization.

The Board is duly constituted and balanced as required under the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing
Regulations/Agreement read with the policy of the Board of directors appointment and remuneration in

terms of the provisions of Section 13a(3)(e), read with sub-section (3) of Section 178 of the Companies Act,
2013. During the year under review, Sri N. Krishna Mohan and Smt. K.V.Nagalalitha, Directors will be

retiring at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible offer themselves for reappointment. Sri.

N. Umashankar, Company Secretary resigned as Company Secretary and in his place Sri. P. Rajendra babu
was appointed.
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Independent Directors:

During the year under review, the
the basis of criteria such as Board

information flow to the Board and

relevant statutes.

Board was evaluated on the basis of composition, effectiveness ofPerformance of Committees of the

working and independence etc.

The Board and nomination and Remuneration Committee evaluated the performance of individual

directors on the basis of criteria such as attendance, contribution of Directors at Board/Committee

Meetings, adherence to ethical standards and code of conduct of the Company, interpersonal

relations with other directors, meaningful and constructive contribution and inputs in the

Board/committee meeting etc'

Familiarisation Programme For Independent Directors: A detailed presentation covering the role,

duties and responsibilities of the independent directors, company objectives, strategy, operations,

organisation structure etc made at the time of their appointment, is sent to the existing independent

directors everyVear.

ln Accordance with section l-49(7) of the Companies Acl,2Qt3, each Independent Director has given

declaration to the company confirming that he meets the criteria of independence laid down in

section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

Directors' responsibilitv statement:
pursuant to Section 134 (5) of Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors to the best of their knowledge

and beliefstate that:

In the preparation of annual accounts for the year ended 3L" March 2019, the applicable accounting

standards had been followed alongwith properexplanation relatingto materialdepartures;

The directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made

judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and Fairview of the

state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and the profit and loss of the company

forthat period.

The directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting

recordsinaccordancewith theprovisionsofthisActforsafeguarding theassetsofthecompany

and for preventing and'detectingfraud and other irregularities

The director had prepared and annual accounts on a going concern basis., and

In the case of listed company, directors had laid down internalfinancial controls to be followed by the

company and that such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively.

The director had devised proper system to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable

laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

Board carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance on

composition, structure and effectiveness of the Board Processes,

functioning of the Board etc. Considering the requirements of the

N.

.i.
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Auditors:
r'. Statutory Auditors: The present statutory auditors have resigned on 14.08.2019 on account of their

inability to carry out the audit works since they were located at Nizamabad. The Board has

recommended the appointment of M/s Satyanarayana & Co., Chartered Accountants, Secunderabad

for a period of 5 years we.f 2O79-2O
.t Cost Auditors: M/s Bisati & Co, Cost Accountants are the Cost Auditors appointed by the company

Board for auditing the cost accounts ofthe company for the year ended 31.03.2019.

, Secretarial Auditor: M/s K. Swamy & Co., Company Secretaries in practice are the Secretarial

Auditors appointed bythe board ofdirectors ofthe companyforthe year 2018-19.

* Internal Auditors: M/s C Ramachandram and Co, chartered Accountants have been appointed to
conduct the internal Audit and review of internal financial controls on financial statements and other
matters for better performance of the company which is being implemented by the your company

from time to time.

Disclosure of particulars of emplovees and related matters:
The information required pursuant to Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managing Personnel) Rules, 2014 and Companies

(Particulars of Employees) Rules, 1975,in respect of employees of the Company and Director is given in a

separate annexure to this Report--. Particulars of employees as per the Rule-5(2) of The Companies

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2OL4, are not applicable to the

company.

With regard to the observations of the Statutory Auditors regarding the confirmations from some of the
parties, it is hereby clarified that the company has obtained confirmations from major accounts and some

minor accounts, the Board felt that it was required as there is no impact on the accounts.

Other Disclosures

* Board Committees :

The details of composition, terms of Reference, meetings and attendance particulars of various

committees of Board such as Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Corporate

Social Responsibility Committee, Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Share Transfer Committee are

provided in the Corporate Governance Report vide annexure No 5 to this Directors report. The

intervening gap between the meetings of the Committees are within the prescribed period under the

Companies Act, 2013 and the listing regulations. The Audit Committee consists of 2 independent

directors i.e. Sri P Ramamoorthy and Sri Nemani Gopal and one non executive director i.e Smt K V

Nagalalitha.

.f. Loans, Guarantees or Investments:
There were no loans/guarantees given bythe company during the financialyear 2Ot8-19.

t
All related party transactions that were entered into during the financial year 2018-19 were on an arms

length basis and in the ordinary course of business and were in compliance with the applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the listing regulations. There were no material related party

contracts or arrangements or transactions made by the company. The Company has adopted a related
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party transactions policy duly approved by the Board, Details of the related parties disclosures
(transactions) are provided in the accompanying financial statements. The disclosure in form AOC-2 is

not applicable.

.i. Vigil Mechanism/ Whistle Blower Policy:

The Company has adopted a whistle blower policy ad has established a clear vigil mechanism and

directors to report concerns un ethical behaviour. The policy provides for adequate safeguards against

victimisation of emplovees who avail of the mechanism and also provides for direct access to the
chairman of the audit committee. The whistle blower policy may be accessed on the website of the
company.

.i. Prevention of Sexual Harassment at Workplace:
The Company has adopted a policy on prevention, prohibition and redressal of sexual harassment at

the work place in line with the provisions of the "The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act,2013 and Rules made there under, your Company has

constituted Internal Complaints Committee (lCC). The Committee has four members and is chaired by

a senior women member of the organisation. lt is stated that there are no such complaints received by

the committee/company during the year under revtew.

.i. Material Chanees after close of the financial vear:
There have been no material changes and commitments which have occurred afterthe close of the
yeartilldate of this report, effectingthefinancial position of the company.

.f. Segment-wise or p rod uct-wise performa nce :

TheCompanyismainlyengagedinthebusinessof manufacturerof OPC53/43andPPCgradecement
a nd ca ptive sola r power ge neration. Du ring the yea r u nder review, the com pa ny has Single Reporta ble

Segment i.e./ Cement.

.1. Risk and concerns:
The risks and concerns which are applicable to all industries and specially to cement industry can be

said to be prevalent in the case of your company as well. Few of the major risks are given below.

Periodical increases in the cost of inputs leading to impact on margins
o Uncertainty in coal supplies and increases in the prrces.

o Failure or deficiency in the monsoon which may lead to reduction/ loss of revenue due to reduction in

demand for cement
o Changes in Government policy impactthe costs, demand and supply.

* Internal control svstems and their adequacv:
The Company's internal control system in place has a process designed to take care of various
controls and audit requirements. lt ensures effectiveness in the operations and protection of the
company's assets from any possible loss and unauthorised use. lt also ensures proper and correct
data being recorded. The design ofthe transactions is such thatthere is an adequate, appropriate
and need based control on the activities/ business processes ofthe company. The Internal control
system is augmented by an established internal audit system which is carried out by outside
chartered accountants ofthe repute and experience. Regular reviews of internal audit are carried

out to ensure robustness of the systems a nd control environment. The interna I auditors submit their
reports to the audit committee of the Board of Directors for their review. lt is also ensured that the
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internal audit scope is adequate and their reviews are well directed to achieve the desired

objectives. The committee also reviews the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control

systems and suggests improvements from time to time. The Compliance to the legal and statutory

requirements is given utmost importance as also to ensure efficiency in operations/ reporting and

controls. All parameters in operations/ activities are monitored regularly to ensure desired results.

Human resources development and industrial relations:

The main focus of the company is to attract, develop and retain talented employees in order to

achieve the business objectives. The company has made efforts in the field of training and

development, congenial work environment, providing challenging work opportunities etc. The

Company has framed HR practices in order to strengthen and building people talent for achieving

the business objectives. Initiatives to develop leadership lines as well as enhance technical and

functional capability with special focus on nurturing young talent are taken. Young managers are

groomed by providing higher responsibilities, Focus remains on gaining cross functional knowledge

to enable meaningful participation of employees all across of the company in innovation and process

improvement. With the company entering in next phase of growth, the nurtured talent pool will

enable smooth transition to new growth trajectory. During the year employee relations remained

cordial. This has enabled company to build healthy relationship and resolve issues through dialogue

and discussions.

Annexures to the Directors' RePort

Corporate Social Responsibility:
The company has constituted a Board level Committee " Corporate Social Responsibility Committee"

in terms of section 135 and Schedule Vll of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the provisions of the

listing agreement/ regulations. CSR activities as detailed in a separate annexure to this annual report

as required under Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 vide Annexure 1

and the same may also be accessed on the company's website.

The information relating to the conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange

earnings/outgo, as required under the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made there under is set

out in Annexure 2 which forms part of this Annual Report.

Secretarial Audit Report:
The Company's Secretarial Auditors M/s K Swamy and CO, has issued their Report for the year 2018-

19 wh ich is attached to th is Directors' Report vide Annexure-3

Extract of Annual Return:
The Annual Return of the Company has been placed at the Website of the company and can be

accessed at http://www.srichakracement.com/Admin/Files/SCCL-Annual%20Return.pdf

the details in Form MGT-9 is atAnnexure-4
Corporate Governance Report :

Pursuant to the Listing regulations, the company has complied with the guidelines and a statement

on the corporate governance report for the year 2018-19 is attached to this Report vide Annexure-5.

Disclosure of Remuneration :

A Statement as required under section L97 of Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 5(1) of Companies

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, is enclosed as Annexure 5.
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Cautionary Statement:
Statements made in this report describing the Company's projections, estimates, expectations or
predictions may be 'forward looking predictions within the meaning of applicable securities laws and

regulations. Actual results may differ from such estimates, projections, etc. whether expressed or

implied. Factors which would make a significant difference to the Company's operations include

availability of quality raw materials, market prices in the domestic and overseas markets, changes in

Govt. Regulations and tax laws, economic conditions affecting demand/ supplies and other
environmentalfactors over which the Company does not have any control.

Acknowledsement:
Your Directors take this opportunity to express their sincere appreciation for the support and co-

operation received from the various departments of the Government, Bankers, Suppliers, Customers

and Shareholders.

The Directors also wish to place on record their appreciation for the committed services of the

company's Employees..

For and behalf ofthe
For Sri Chakra Cement limited

Place: Hyderabad
Date:14.08.2019

N. Krishna Mohan
Chairman

KVijay Kumar
Joint Managing Director
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SRI CHAKRA CEMENT LIMITED-

[Pursuanttosectionl35ofthecompaniesAct,2013andRu|emadethereunder}..

made there under, the Company has formulated it CSR policy

for develooment and implementation of programmes and

projects for providing benefits to weaker sections of the

society, particularly in the areas of education, healthcare and

enhancement of income of rural poor' While planning the CSR

Activities, th needs of the people are taken into account and

people living around the places where our manufacturing

operations are carried out, are consulted We have

undertaken CSR activities directly through our staff with the

support of reputed NGOS and also t hrough Sri Alivelu Manga

sarvaiah Charitable trust. The CSR Policy is placed on its

website
Sri P RamamoorthY, Chairman

Sri N Krishna Mohan, Member

Sri K Vijay Kumar, member

ih" Au"r"g" profits for the past three years amounts to Rs

884 18 Lakhs

R5. 17.58 Lakhs

oetails of csn activities/projects undertaken during the
Rs 20 lakhs

Provided financial support to physically challenged students

for their education, drinking water facilities by installing water

purifying plants, contribution for construction of roads and

canals in rural areas in around the plant and annadanam

for poor

Not Applicable

The CSR committee confirms that the implementation and

monitoring of CSR is in compliance with CSR objectives and

policy of the CompanY.

Etc.

lnformation conservation of Energy, Technology absorption, Foreign Exchange earnings and outgo

required to be disclosed under section 13a (3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of the

companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, are Siven in the Annexure B to this report'

l. Conservationof Energy:

*Energy Conservation Measures were taken reguarly and energy audits are being internally conducted

and efforts are being made to reduce energy consumption by using energy-efficient equipments' thereby

achieve cost savings and during the year under revieW the power consumption was reduced to 89.75 per

Mt of Cement.

{.Total energy consumption and energy consumption per unit of production as per Form A of the

Annexure to the Rules in respect of industries specified in the schedule thereto:

NL

A brief outline of the Company'CSR Policy including

overview of the programmes proposed to be

undertaken and reference to the web link to the CSE

Policy and projects or programmes.

The Composition of CSR Committee is as under:

Auer.g" n"t Profits of the company for the last three

The prescribed cSR expenditure at 2%

Total amount spent for the financial year 2018-19: Rs

Activities/Projects Undertaken

Amount unspent, if anY:

Reasons for not spending the prescribed amount for

A Resoonsibilitv statement bythe CSR Committee that

the implementation and monitoring of CSR policy, is in

compliance with the CSR objectives and policy of the

company
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FORM B

ll Technology Absorption: Efforts made to Research and Development &Technology absorptlon as per

Form B of the Annexure to the Rules: Not Applicable

lll. Foreign Exchange Earnings And Outgo: NIL

Rules, 2014 for The Financial Year Ended 31" March, 2019.

To

The Membersof
M/s SriChakra Cement Limited

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the

adherence to good corporate governance practice by M/s Sri Chakra Cement Limited (hereinafter called

"the Company"). Secretarial Audit was conducted in the manner that provided us a reasonable basis for

evaluating the corporate conducts / statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company's Books, Papers, Minutes Books, Forms and Returns filed and

other Records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers,

agents a nd a uthorised representatives d u ring the cond uct of secreta ria I a ud it, we hereby report that in ou r

opinion, the Company has, duringthe financialyear commencing from 1"April, 2018 and ended 31" March,

2019, complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board

process and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting

made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records

maintained by M/s Sri Chakra Cement Limited ("The Company"). for the financial year ended on

31" March, 2019, according to the provisions of:

The Companies Act, 2013 (the Rct) and the Rules made there under;
The Securities Contracts (Regulation)Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the Rules made there under;

a
t

FORM -A

Total Amount (Rs. In Lakh

Diesel Generator (Units in Lakhs)

Unit oer litre of diesel

Coal % oer Mt of Clinker

I
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* The Depositories Act, 1996 a nd the Regu lations a nd Bye-laws f ra med there u nder;
.i. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made there under to the

extent of Foreign Direct Investment(FDl) and Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial

Borrowings;
.i. The Securities a nd Excha nge Boa rd of India Act, 1992 ('S E B I Act'):-
* The Secu rities a nd Excha nge Boa rd of India (Proh ibition of Inside r Trad ing) Regu lations, 2015;

* The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeover)

Regulations,2011.
.i. Specific Laws applicable to the Company:

t Cement ControlOrder, 1-967

* Cement Cess Rule, 1993

, Cement (Quality Control) Order, 1995 and 2003

N. Bureau of Indian Standards Rules, 1987.

* Mines and Minerals (Regulation and Development) Act, 1957.

* The Mines Act,7952
* The Explosives Act, 1884.

r'. General Laws applicable to the company:
{. Factories Act, 1948;

a lndustrial Disputes Act,!947;
a The Payment of Wages Act, 1936;

a The Minimum Wages Act, 1948;

a The Employees Compensation Act; 1923
.f. The Employees' Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions 4ct,7952;
* The Payment of Bonus Act; 1965;

l. Equal Remuneration Act, 1976;
.t The Environment (Protection) Act, 1986;

, The Hazardous Waste (Management, Handling and Transboundary Movement) Rules,2008;

* Labour laws and other incidental laws related to labour and employees appointed by the Company

either on its payroll or on contractual as related to wages, gratuity etc.;
.f. The Air and Water (Prevention & Control of Pollution) Acts;

* Acts as prescribed under DirectTax and IndirectTax;
.i. Land Revenue laws of the State of AP;

n LabourWelfareActoftheStateofAP;

Exchange Board of lndia Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act') were not applicable to the Company under the

fi nancial year under report:-
.i. The Securities and Exchange Board of India(lssue of Capital and Disclosures Requirements)

Regulations,2009;
.i. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; and
.i. The Secu'rities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998;

* The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to a lssue and Share Transfer Agents)

Regulations, 1993, regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

* The Securities and Exchange Board of India (lssue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008

t The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employees Benefits) Guidelines, 201-4;

a Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India under the provisions

of Companies Act, 2013; and
.i. SEBI Listing Regulations,2015.
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Companies Act, 2013 to the extent applicable and the Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc.,
mentioned above subject to the following observations:

OBSERVATIONS:

authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we report that the provisions of
the Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made there under to
the extent of:

* Exte rna I Com mercia I Borrowings were not attracted to the Com pa ny u nder the fi na ncia I yea r u nder
reporU

r" Foreign Direct Investment (FDl) were not attracted to the company under the financial year under
report;

{' Overseas Direct Investment by Residents in Joint Venture/ Wholly Owned Subsidiary abroad were
not attracted to the company under the financial year under report.

authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we report that the Company nas

- notmadeanyGDRs/ADRsoranyCommerciallnstrumentunderthefinancialyearunderReport.

the audit, we report that the equity shares of the company are suspended for trading by the BSE in
the earlierVears.

the audit, we report that the company was sanctioned revival scheme approved by the Hon'ble
BIFR and the scheme is implemented.

systems and mechanism formed by the Company for compliances under other applicable Acts,
Laws and Regulations to the Company. The list of major head/groups of Act, Laws and Regulations
as applicable to the Company is given under para-1(vi and vii) above.
We further report that:
The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of
the Board of Directors that took place during the year under review were carried out in compliance
with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detaileo
notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and
obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for
meaningful participation of the meeting.

{' Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members' views, if any, are captured and
recorded as part of the minutes.

n We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company with the size and
operation of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules,
regu lations and guidelines.

t

*

Place: Secunderabad,
Date: 14-08.2019.

For K. Swamy And Co.,

Company Secretaries

(K. Swamy)
Fcs No.3743
Cp.No.2013
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(This Report is to be read with our letter of even dated annexed herewith which forms an integral part of
this Report).

To,

The Members
Sri Chakra Cement Limited
Hyderabad.

Our Secretarial Audit Report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

{. We have audited the statutory and company secretarial books, papers, minutes books, forms and

returns and other records maintained by M/s Sri Chakra Cement Limited (the company) for the year

ended 31" March 2019 pursuant to the various Acts, Rules, Regulations and Guidelines applicable to

the company as specified in our Report accompanyingthis letter.

.i. The Company's Management is the responsible to maintain and keep various statutory and

secretarial books, records, and registers as stated under the provisions of Section

8s(1),88(1),94(1),118(1),119(L),128(1) to 128(5),170(1),186(9) and (10),189(1) and 190(1) of the

Companies Act,2013 and the relevant Rules made there under and further in accordance with the

Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India as notified under the

Companies Act,2013. lt is the responsibility of the management of the company to ensure proper

compliance with the provisions of allapplicable laws, rules, guidelines and regulations.

N. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable

assurance aboutthe correctness ofthe contents ofthe Secretarial records. The verification was done

on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the

processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.
.f. Our Responsibility is to express an opinion on these Secretarial records, standards and procedure

followed by the company with respect to the secretarial compliances'

* We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the company.

N. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of
laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc'

, We believe that audit evidence and information provided by the company's management is

adequate and appropriate for us to provide a basis for our opinion.

* The accompanying Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the futures viability of the

company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the

affairs of the company.

Place: Secunderabad,
Date: 14-08.2019.

For K. Swamy And Co.,

Company Secretaries

(K. Swamy)
Fcs No.3743
Cp.No.2013
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SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL BREAK UP AS % TO TOTAL EQUITY}

% changeB. Shar
01.04.2018 trll3.zorg
No, ofshires % No, of Shates %

L018244 11.98 ]'078244 11.98 NL

880144 9.79 8a0744 979 NL

r877990 20.81 7a77990 20 87 N

2r.83 1964730 21.83 N

42780 048 42780 048 Nt
a I M/s Fnvean Leaslng anu tttvc>'"''"' ""

569370 6.33 569370 533 NL

7 I tvl/s Krishnar
336L42 336142 3.73 NL

8 I M/s litharam
6750000 75.00 6750000 7s.00

Total
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ten shareholders (other than directors'

i. PrinciPalAmount

ii Interest due but not

ii-ii. rt t"r".t accrued but not due

Total

& holders of GDRS &

ffi 
"-hotding.t'on3l'Q3.2019

No. of'Shares

:uelopmentTorporation 
:rzgooo 't + 

- izoooo l'4

il I vsundararamaiah 10380 v.v
10 Atul Ka

V. INDEBTEDNESS:

lndebtedness of the
ued but not dr"lo!-e."Yt"nl

Parriculats
2018) ( Rs in takh

Indebtedness at the of the financial

i. PrinciPal Amount

ii. Interest due but not

iii Interest accrued but not due

Total
in indebtedness the financial

Addition
Reduction

nc

(C) Change In Promoters' Shareholding: There is no change

(E) Shareholding Of Directors And Key Managerial Personnel: There is no change

'?i:
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Vl. Remuneration Of Directors And Kev Manaqerial personnel
(A) Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Director and/or Manager:

Vlll Penalties / Punishment / CompoundinA Of Offences: NIL

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 14,08.2019

N. Krishna Mohan
Chairman

For and on behalf the Board
Sri Chakra Cement limited

K. Vijay Kumar
loint Managing Director

ANNEXURE-5: REPORTON CORpORATE GOVERNANCE

In terms of complia nce with regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board
of lndia (Listing obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulatio ns,20L5, a corporate Governance
Report is set out herewith along with relevant disclosures as required there unoer.
Companv's' philosophy:
The company's policies, practices and philosophy adopted since inception are in line with corporate
Governance. These policies, practices are required periodically to ensure its effective compliance. The
composition of company board is well balanced with a view to manage the affairs of the company
efficiently and professionally. The management believes that corporate growth, goals, transparency
and enhanced shareholdervalue are to be achieved onlythrough good corporate governance.
Board of directors:
The Board of Directors of the Company have an optimum combination of Executive, Non-Executive ano
Independent Directors, who have in-depth of business knowledge of business, in addition to the
expertise in their areas of specialisatioh . The Board of the Company comprises eight Directors that
includes one Women Director.

,Sr'.!l K!s-h.na

*onun't ttt'
Chairman'

Sri K. Vijay Kumar
,oint Mng.'
Diiector

Sri VVSR.
nnjaneyiilu
Exe, Dir€ctor

4LOO
Salary as per provision contained in section
17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961 (incl value of
perks u/s 17 (2), (3), Stock Opting, Sweat Equity,
commission etc.) (Rs in Lakhs)

48.00 42 00

Remuneration to KeV Mana Personnel other than MD/WTD: (Rs. In Lakhs)

cFo Company Secretary TotalAmount

27 28
Salary as per provision contained in section 17(1) of the
lncome-tax Act, 1961 (incl value of perks u/s t7 (2), (3]1,
Stock Opting, Sweat Equity, commission etc.) (Rs in
Lakhs)

1-0.7r 1-6.57
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lli

NO of qorinpaniqs in
.whlch.he ts i difertor

Promoter & Exe. Sri. N. Krishna Mohan Chairman 7

Di rectors. Sri. K Viiav Kumar Joint Manasins Director 6

Promoter and Non Smt. K V Nasalalitha Di rector 4

Exe. Director Sri.VVSRAnjaneyulu Executive Director 3

Independent Non

Executive Director

Sri. P Ramamorthy Independent Director 3

Sri K P Patnaik Independent Director NL

Dr A 5 Narayana Nl_

Sri Nemani Gopal NL

|jj) Board Meetings dates and attendance particulars thereot

During the year 2o]8 -1g the Board met4 times held and t he following table shows details of Directors attendance at

the board and at the last annual

Category D:r!B:n1.'tlo:! 12:11,18 10;01+9 12;02.2019 Last

AGM

Sri. N. Krishna
Mohan

Chairman Y

P&ED Sri. K Vijay Kumar Joint M D

Sri.V V S R

Ania nevul u

Exec

Director

N

PNE

Smt. K. V.

Nasa la litha
Director N N

Sri. P Ramamorthy IND-

Director

Y

NE Sri. K P Patnaik IND-

Director

T Y N

Dr A S Narayana IND-

Di rector

Y N

Sri Nemani Gopal IND-

Director

N N

Board Committees and their powers and procedures

In Compliance with the requirements of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and listing

regulations, the following committees were constituted to review on various affairs of the day to day

business from time to time a nd monitoring the same periodically.

Al Audit Committee:
Attendance particulars of the committcomoosition, Terms of Reference, and a nce ee

imerof:th€'Diiditoi Position Attended T'

Sri.P Ramooorthy,

lnd Director

Chairman A Audit Committee reviews the Internal

Auditors and Statutory Audit reports,

financial results, effectiveness of internal

audit processes and the Company's risk

management strategy.

Sri.Nemani Gopal

lnd Director

Member 4

smt. K.V. Naga la litha

Non Ex Director

Member 4 3

The chairman of the Audit committee was present at the last Annual General Meeting
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Sri, P Rama Moorthy,
Ind Director
Smt. K. V Nagalalitha,
Non Ex Director

B) Nomination and Remuneration Committee:
rence, and Attendance particulars of the committee

5ri. Nemani Gopal

Ind. Director
Committee shall formulate a criteria and
policy on appointment/remuneration of
and identify the qualified persons who are
qualified to become Direcrors/ Sr

management.

Committee formulate and recommend to the
Board, a CSR Policy and the amount of
expenditure to be incurred on CSR activities
Committee framed a transparent monitoring
mechanism for implementation of CSR
projects.

Committee focuses primarily on monjtoring
expeditious Redressal and review of investors /
stakeholders grievances

Cl Corporate Social Responsibility Committee:
Compgsition, Terms of Reference, and Attendance particulars of the committee

Sri. N Krishna Mohan

Director

sri. K Vijay Kumar

Joint Managing Director
Sri P Ramamoorthy

Ind Non Ex Director

D) Stakeholders' Relationship Committee:
Terms of Reference, and Attendance s of the committee

Sri P Ramamoorthy,
Ind Non Ex Director
Sri VVSRAn.janeyulu,
Non Ex Director
Sri. N Krishna Mohan

E) Share transfer committee:
Composition, Terms of Reference, and Attendance particulars of the committee

Sl.No Nature of Complaints 2018:i9
Re€eived Angwered'

1 Non-receipt of annual accounts N
2 Non-receipt of share certificates 1 N a\
3 SEBI/BSE comolaints N N N
4 Sub-division or consolidation N N N
5 Non-receipt of dividends I N

Disclosures:
F Related Party Transactions: There are no materially significant related party transactions that have

potential conflict with the interests of the company at large. Suitable disclosures, have been made in
the Annual Report.

F Non compliance bv the companv, penalties, strictures imposed: No instances of non compliances,
strictures/penalties have been imposed on the company or the securities and Exchange Board of

O 
Indiaoranystatutoryauthorityonanymattersrelatedtocapitalmarketsduringthelastthreeyears.

The Company has complied
requirements of Companies Act,2013 and the Listing Regulations regarding appointment,
qualifications, procedures and evaluation of performance of independent and non executive
directors and also obtained declarations from all the Independent Directors as required underthe
Companies Act, 2013.

Nam€ of the bircctor Position held Attehded.. Terms of refere[c€.
Sri. K. Vijay Kumar
Ex. Director

Chairman 3 3 Committee. apprilves share transfers,
issue of duplicate certificates, share
transmission, share transposltion and
related matters.

Smt. K V Nagalalitha

Non- Ex. Director

Member 3 ?
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O

Seoarate Meeting of lndependent Directors: In Compliance of the requirements of the Act, all the
lndependent Directors had a meeting on 31" March ,2Ot9,without the attendance of Non-lndependent
Directors and members of Management and discussed the issues such as review of performance of non

independent directors, chairperson based on the views of executive and non executive directors and

the Board as a whole and assessed the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between
the company Management and the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably
perform their duties.
Risk Management: Risk evaluation and management is an on-going process within the organisation.
The Company has a well-defined risk management framework in place. The Company periodically
places before the Audit and Risk Management Committee and the Board, the key risks and the risk

assessment and mitigation procedures followed bythe Companyfor its review.

Details of compliance with mandatory requirements and adoption of non-mandatory requirements:
The Company has complied with all mandatory requirements of Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V

of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)

Regulations, 20L5

Communication To Shareholders:
Effective communication of information is an essential component of corporate governance. lt is a
process of sharing information, ideas, thoughts, opinions and plans to all stakeholders which promotes

management-shareholder relations. The Company regularly interacts with shareholders through
multiple channels of communication such as results announcement, annual report, media releases,

Company's website and subject specific communications.
The unaudited quarterly and audited annual financial results are announced immediately after
approvalfrom the Board and sent to respective stock exchanges where the Company's shares are listed

within the time specified in the listing regulations.
Thereafter, these are circulated among media / news agencies / analyst etc. of the Company and are

displayed on the Company's website www.srichakracement.com,
Annual Report of the Company is sent to each shareholder priorto the Annual General Meeting.
Sebi Complaints Redressal Svstem (Scoresl

SEBI has initiated SCORES processing the investor complaints in a centralised web redress system and

online Redressal of all the shareholders complaints. The company is in compliance with the SCORES

and redressed the shareholders complaints well within the stipulated time.

1

1
4

I
6.

&

Related to Sri. K. Viiav Kumar & Smt. K.V.

Related to Sri. N. Krishna Mohan & Smt. K.V.N

Related to sri. N. Krishna Mohan & Sri K Viiav Kumar

Related to Sri. N. Krishna Mohan & sri. K.Viiav Kumar

None
None

None
None

Annual General

Monday, 23^" September, 2019 D.No.27/4/t, Kannavari Thota, lst Floor,

central Excise Office, Guntur, A.P,-522Io4

0 Relationship between Directors inter se:



The current financial
Date of Book closure
Stock exchange, listing etc.

Name of the Depositories ( For Demat only)

lSlN No

ldentification Number
Name and ignation of com
Registrar And Share Transfer Agents:
(Demat and Physical)

SRI CHAKRA CEMENT LIMITED

to 31st March

The Shares are listed on Bombay Stock Exchange. Presently, the
shares are under suspension and steps have been initiated to revoke

Stock code- 518053

National Securities Depositories Limited, Trade World, 'A' Wing,
4&5 Floors, Kamala Mills Compound, Lower Parel, Mumbai-400 013.

Central Depository Services {lndia} Limited, P J Towers, 1

Dalai Street. Fort. Mumbai-400 001.

1NE827D01020

140300A P 1-98 1 P 1CO02952

e Officer,
M/s. Venture Capital & Corporate Investments Private Limited, 12-

10-57, Bharat Nagar Colony, Hyderabad- 500 018. Tel.N0040-
2381.8475/76, Fax No.04023868024, Email lD:

Distribution of Share Holding as on 31" March 2019

::r: :5-. r:,-::.-Iolal '

- 5000 13470 97.28 72532670 L5.15

5001 - L0000 251 181 1545200 183
10001 - 20000 62 0.45 872400 o.97

20001 - 30000 26 0.19 562350 o.74

30001 - 40000 o 0.04 204900 o.z3
40001 - 50000 3 0.02 135600 0.15
50001 - 100000 6 0.04 447000 UJ

100001 and above 22 016 73499880 8r.67

!384e : 100 l

Share transfer svstem:
Demat Requests are normally confirmed within 1Odays of receipt subject to the documents being valid
and complete in all respects.

Dematerialisation of shares:
The shares of the company are in compulsory demat segment. The company has signed agreements with
both the depositories i.e. National Securities Depository Limited and Central DepositoryServices (lndia)
Limited. As on 31" March,2019 approximately 44.45LacShares are dematerialised representtng4g.4!o/o
ofthe total paid up capital approx.

UNIT: 1: Sri Narasimhapuri, Karempudi, Guntur District, Ap I Company Secretary and Compliance Officer,
UNIT-2: Alamanda, Jami Mandal, Vizianagaram District, Ap. I SRI CHAKRA CEMENT LIMITED,
Caotive solar Power Plant:
Sri Kalahasthi, Chittoor District, AP

Place: Hyderabad,
Date:14.08.2019

6-3-668/10/66, Durganagar Colony, Punjagutta,
Hydera bad- 500 082, Ph :040-666I 4633, 040-6667237 4.

For Sri Chakra Cement Limited

K. Vijay Kumar
Joint Managing Director
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Ratio of remuneration of each Executive Director to the median remu neration of the Employees of the
company for the financial year 2018-19, the percentage increase in remuneration of Chief Executive
Officer, Chief Financial Officer and other Executive Director and Company Secretary during the
financial year 2018-19 are as under.

Ratlo of'rerfiunerat

^r^-*-" i^,iiiihii.

Sri N Krishna Mohan Cha irman t:14
2 Sri K Viiav Kumar Joint l\4anaeins Director 1,:'J,2

3 SriVVSRAnianevulu Executive Director
KeV Managerial Personnel ( Other than MD/WTD/JMD)

Sri NSRV Prasad Chief Financial Officer 8%
2 Sri P Raiendra Babu CompanV Secretary )

DECLARATION of CODE OF CONDUCT:

As provided under Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of lndia (Listing

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,2015, the members of Board of Directors and Senior
Management Personnel have affirmed compllance with the Code of Conduct for Board of Directors and Senior
Management for the year ended on 3l't March, 2019

For and on behalfthe Board
Sri Chakra Cement limited

Place: Hyderabad N. Krishna Mohan K. Vijay Kumar
Date:14.08.2019 Chairman Joint Managing Director

5,No. Particulars Descr

The percentile increase in the median remuneration of the
employees during the financial year 2018-19

There was an increase of 72% in the median
remuneration of employees during the financial
vear 201.8-19

The No of permanent employees on the rolls of company
during the financial year 2018-19

There were about 320 permanent employees on

rolls during the financial year 2018-19

Relationship between average increase in remuneration
and company's performance:

The average increase in remuneration of the
employees was about 12% As against this, total
revenue from operations of the company during FY

2018-19 was declined bv 2.37%.

Comparison of the remuneration of the Key Managerial
Personnel against the performance of the Company

The total remuneration of Key Managerial Personnel
went uo bv 12.9%

Variations in the market capitalization of the Company,
nri.A arrhihdc r.ii^

Presently shares are under suspension and hence,

the same cannot be reported

Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of
employees other than the managerial personnel in the last

financial year and its comparison with the percentile

increase in the managerial remuneration and justification
thereof and pointout if there are any exceptional
circumstances for increase in the manaeerial remuneration

Average percentile increase in the salary of
employees other than managerial personnel was

aboul L2% approx as against the percentile increase

in the remuneration of manaserial was about 12.9%

The key parameters for any variable component of
remuneration availed bv the Directors

NA

lx The ratio of the remuneration of the highest paid director
to that of the emolovees who are not directors but receive

remuneration in excess of the highest paid director during
rne vear

Nt_

X Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the
remuneration policy of the Company

The remuneration of directors and other KMP is in
compliance with the policy of the company and as

per statutory requirements
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*

*
.i.

*

CEO AND CFO CERTIFICATION
(Pursuant to Regulation 17(8) of Listing Regulations, 2015)

We, K. Vijay Kumar, Joint Managing Director and N S RV Prasad , Chief Financial Officer responsible for the
financefunction and certify that:

.i. We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year ended 31" March,
2019 and that to the best of our knowledge and beha lf.

These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any materialfact or contain
statements that might be misleading.

These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company's affairs and are in compliance
with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.
There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the company
during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company's code of conduct.
We accept responsibility for esta blishing and maintaining internal controls for financia I reporting and
we have evaluated the effectiveness of the internal control systems of the Company pertaining to
financial reporting and we have disclosed to the Auditors and Audit Committee deficiencies in the
design or operation of internal controls, if any, of which they are aware and the steps they have taken
or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies.
We have indicated to the Auditors and the'Audit Committee"
) Therehasnotbeenanysignificantchangeininternalcontroloverfinancialreportingduring the

year under reference.
F There has not been any significant Changes in accounting policies during the year requiring

disclosure in the notes to the financial statements and

) We are not aware of any instance during the year of significant fraud with involvement there in, if
any, of the Management or an Employee having a significant role in the Company's internal control
system over fi nancial reporting.

.t

Place: Hyderabad
Date : 14.08.2019

To

K. Vijay Kumar
Joint Managing Director

NSRV Prasad

Chief Financial Officer

For K. Swamy And Co.,

Company Secretaries

(K. Swamy)
Fcs No.3743
Cp.No.2013

No Disqualification certificate form Company Secretary in Practice

The Members
Sri Chakra Cement Limited

I have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns, and disclosures received from the Directors
of Sri Chakra Cement Limited having CIN: 1403004P1981P1C002952 having its Registered Office at
D.N6.27 l4/1,, Kannavari Thota, 1" Floor, beside Central Excise Office, Guntur-522104,Andhra Pradesh,
produced before me by the company for the purpose of issuing their certificate in accordance with
Regulation 34 (3 ) read with Schedule V- Para C- Clause 10(i) of the SEBl ( Listing obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

After verification as considered necessary, i hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the
Company have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of
Companies by the SE B I Regulations, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or a ny such other Statutory Authority

Place: Secunderabad,
Date : 14-08.2019.
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AU DITORS' CERTI FICATE REGARDI NG CO RPORATE GOVERNANCE

to
The Members of
Sri Chakra Cement Limited
Hyderabad.

We have examined the compliance of conditions of corporate governance by M/s Sri Chakra Cement

Limited, for the year ended 31" March 20L9, as stipulated as per the relevant provisions of the Securities

and Exchange Board of India ( Listing obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ("Listing

Regulations") as referred to in Regulation 15(2) of the Listing Regulations for the period 01.04.2018 to
31.03.2019.

ThecomplianceoftheconditionsofCorporateGovernanceistheresponsibilityofthemanagement. Our

examination was limited to the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for
ensuring the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance. lt is neither an audit nor an

expression of opinion on the financialstatements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanation given to us, we certify
that the Company has compiled with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above

mentioned Listi ng Agreement/Listi ng Regu lations, as a ppl ica ble.

We state that no investor grievances are pending for a period exceeding one month against the Company as

perthe records maintained bythe Investors Grievance Committee.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor

the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Place: Secunderabad,
Date : 30.05.2019.

For M/S DVR & Co.,

Chartered Accountants
Firm's Regn No.007584S

D Venkata Ramana
Proprietor

M No.205469
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Independent Auditor's Report

To The Members of Sri Chakra Cement Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
We have audited the financial statements of M/s Sri Chakra Cement Limited ("the Company,,) which
comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 201,9,and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other
comprehensive income),the statement of changes in equity and the statement of Cash Flows for the year
then, and notes to the financial statements including a summary of significant accounting policies and
other expla natory information.
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act 2013(,Act,,) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31,2019, and its loss, total
comprehensive income, the changes in equity and cash flows for the year ended as on that date.
Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards on auditing specified under section 1a3(10) of
the Companies Act, 2013. our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the code of ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the code of ethics.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.
A) Adoption of new revenue recognition standard Ind AS 115
Details of the Key audit Matter
The company adopted Ind AS 115 "Revenue From Contracts with Customers" with effect from April 1,
2018' The application of the new revenue accounting standard involves certain key judgements relating to
identification of distinct performance obligations, determination of transaction price of the identified
performance obligations and point of recognition of revenue.
Ind AS 115 also required extensive disclosures.
Auditors' Response to the Key Audit Matter.
We assessed the Company's process to identify the impact of adoption of the new revenue accounting
standard(lnd AS 115)
Our audit approach consisted testing ofthe design and operating effectiveness ofthe internal controls and
substantive testing as follows:
a) Evaluated the design of internal controls relating to implementation of the new revenue

accounting standard.
b) Selected a sample ofcontinuing and new contracts, and tested the operating effectiveness ofthe

internal control, relating to identification of the distinct performance obligations and
determination of transaction price.

c) Selected a sa m ple of continu ing a nd new contracts a nd performed the following proced u res:
Read, analysed and identified the distinct performance obligations in these contracts.
Compared these performance obligations with that identified and recorded bythe Company.
Considered the terms of the contracts to determine the transaction price including any variable
consideration to verify the transaction price used to compute revenue and to test the basis of
estimation of the variable consideration.
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Performed analytical procedures for reasonableness of revenue recognition as per Ind AS 115.

Information other than the financial statements and auditors' report thereon.
TheCompany'sboardofdirectorsisresponsibleforthepreparationoftheotherinformation. Theother
information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board's

Report including Annexures to Board's Report, A Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance

and Shareholder's information, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report

thereon.
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any

form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with ou r a udit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information

and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone

financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be

materiallV misstated.
lf, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information , we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this rega rd.

Management's Responsibility for the I N D-AS Financial Statements
The Company's Board of Directors is responsible forthe matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies

Act,2013("theAct")withrespect tothepreparationofthese Financial Statements, thatgiveatrueand
fair view of the financial position, financial performance (including other comprehensive income), Cash

Flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (lnd- AS)

prescribed under section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (lndian Accounting Standards) Rules,

2015 and Companies ( Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2016, as amended from time to time, and other

accounting principles generally accepted in India.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting

frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making

judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,implementation and maintenance

of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and

completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Financial

Statements thatgiveatrueandfairviewandarefreefrommaterial misstatement,whetherduetofraudor
e rro r.

In preparing the financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to

continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going

concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease

operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The board of directors are a lso responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the audit of the financialstatements.
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includesouropinion. Reasonableassuranceisahighlevelofassurance,butisnotaguaranteethatanaudit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material il individually or in the aggregate,

theycouldreasonable beexpectedtoinfluencetheeconomicdecisionsofuserstakenonthebasisofthese
fi na ncia I statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professionaljudgment and maintain professional

scepticism throughoutthe audit. We also:

ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
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error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material

misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve

collusion, forgery, intentionalomissions, misrepresentations, orthe override of internalcontrol.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that

are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act,2013, we are also

responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls

system in place and the operating effectiveness ofsuch controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates

and related disclosures made by management.
Conclude on the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting

estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,

based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material u ncertainty exists related to events or conditions

that my cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. lf we conclude that

a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related

disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our

conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However,

future events or conditions may cause the company to cease to conti nue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the

disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a

ma n ner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope

and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal

control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant

ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other

matters that my reasonably be though to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related

safeguards. From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those

matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are

therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation

precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that

a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would

reasonable be expected to out weight the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on other Legal and regulatory Requirements.
!. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order") issued by the Central

Government of India in terms of sub-section(11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure B, a

statement on the matters specified in paragra phs 3 and 4 of the Order'

2. As required bySection 143(3) oftheAct, we reportthat:
a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge

and belief were necessaryforthe purpose of ouraudit;
b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it

appearsfrom ourexamination of those books.

c) The IND-AS Financial Statements (including other comprehensive income), Cash Flows Statement,

statement of changes in equity dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid IND-AS Financial Statements comply with the Accounting Standards

soecified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Ru le 7 of the Companies (Accou nts) Rules, 2014.
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e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2019 and taken

on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2018 from being

Place: Secunderabad,
Date : 30.05.2019.

For M/s DVR & co.,
Chartered Accountants

Firm's Regn No.0075845

D Venkata Ramana
ProPrietor

M No.205459

Chakra Cement Limited. Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub - section 3 of

Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Sri Chakra Cement Limited ("the

Company) as of March 3t,2)tg in conjunction with our audit of the IND-AS Financial Statements of the

Company forthe year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls'

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls

based on ,,the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the

essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls

over Financial Reporhng issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India". These responsibilities

include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were

operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
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company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
i nformation, as req u ired u nder the Com pa n ies A ct, 20L3.

Auditors' Responsibility.

our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing,
issued by lCAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial
controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controloperated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the lN D-AS Financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting
Meaning of Internal Financial Control over Financial Reporting.
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of IND-AS Financial
Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
compa ny's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1)
pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of IND-AS Financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the IND-AS
FinancialStatements.
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial controls over Financial Reporting.
Because of the inherent limitations of financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or f rauo may
occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, orthatthe degree of compliance with
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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Opinion
In our opinion, the company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system

over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating

effectively as at March 3I,zltgbased on "the internalcontrol overfinancial reporting criteria established

by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on

Audit of Internal Financiai controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of chartered

Accountants of India."

Place: Secunderabad,
Date : 30.05.2019.

For M/S DVR & Co.,

Chartered Accountants

Firm's Regn No.0075845

D Venkata Ramana

ProPrietor
M No.205469

Based on the audit proceclures per reportin a true and fair view on the lN D-AS

Financial statements of the company and taking into consideration the information and explanations given

to us and the books of account and other records examined by us in t re normal course of audit, we report

that:

a) The Company nas maintained proper records showing full particulars' including quantitative details

and situation offixed assets.

b) The fixed assets have been physically verified by the management during the year' which in our optnton

is reasonable having |."grrd ,o the size of the company and nature of its business' No material

discrepancies between the books records and the physical fixed assets have been noticed'

c)ThetitledeedsofImmovabIepropertiesareheldinthenameofthecompany.

ii)a)Themanagementhasconnofinventoryatreasonab|einterva|s'
b) The discrepancies noticed the inventory as compared to books records

which has been properly de ount were not material'

iii)The company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies' firms' Limited Liability

partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Act'

Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(iiixa) and 3(iii)(b) and 3(iii)(c) of the order are not applicable to

the Company and hence not commented upon'

i) In our opinion, ancl according to the information and explanations given to us' the company had not

given any loans, guarantees or security or made investments under the provisions of Section 185 and

186 of the ComPanies Act, 2013'
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)

t,

v)

)

i)

i)

The company has not accepted any deposits from the public and hence the directives issued by the

Reserve Bank of I ndia and the provisions ofSections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions ofthe Act

and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2015 with regard to the deposits accepted from the

public are not applicable.

We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the order

madebytheCentralGovernmentforthemaintenanceofcostrecordsunderSub-section(1) ofsection

148 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the products of the Company, and are of the opinion that

prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained.

a)According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the

books of account, and records, the Company has been generally regular in depositing undisputed

statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Goods and Service

tax, Duty of Customs, Value added Tax, Cess art'd other statutory dues with the appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect

of the above were in arrears as at March 3!,2Ot9for a period of more than six months from the date on

when they become payable.

The dues outstanding in respect of income-tax, sales-tax or service tax or duty of customs or duty

of excise or value added tax and cess that have not been deposited on account of any dispute, are

as follows:

The Company has not taken any loan either from banks, financial institutions or from the government

andhasnotissuedanydebentures. Henceanyquestionofdefaultinrepaymentofduesdoesnotarise.

Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the

management, the company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer

(including debt instruments) orterm Loans. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(ix) of the Order are

not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the

management, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the company by its officers or employees

has been noticed or reported duringtheyear.

Amount in

Rs lakhs

Tamilnadu General Sales Tax

Act

5ates I ax 42.89 1983 ll Jr. Civil Judge Hyderabad

AP Sales Tax Authorities Sales Tax to1 1A 2005 and earlier vears bovt. oI A t,

APSPDCL Voltage

Surcharge

1846 50 2010-11 to 2018-19 Honble High Court of A P
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iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has

paid/provided managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by

the orovisions of section 197 read with Schedule Vtothe Act.

Inouropinion,theCompanyisnota NidhiCompany.Therefore,theprovisionsofclause4(xii)ofthe

Order are not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and L88 of
Companies Act, 2013 and the details have been disclosed in the IND-AS Financial Statements as

req uired by the a pplica ble accounting sta ndards.

Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the

management, the company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares

or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review. Accordingly, the provisions of
clause 3 (xiv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the

management, the company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or
persons connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(xv) of the Order are not

applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

In our opinion, the company is not required to be registered under section 45 lA of the Reserve Bank

of India Act, 1934 and accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xvi) of the Order are not applicable to
the Company and hence not commented upon.

v)

vi)

v)

x)

Place: Secunderabad,
Date : 30.05.2019.

For M/S DVR & Co.

Chartered nccountantl
Firm's Regn No.007584S

D Venkata Ramana
Proprietor

M No.205469
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Notesformingpartofthelnd-AsfinancialstatementsfortheyearendedMarch gL,2OLg
L. Company Information:

Sri Chakra Cement Limited (sccL) ("the Company") is a public limited company incorporated in India
vide CIN No 1403004P1981P1c002952 under the provisions of the Companies Act, 195G having its
registered office at Guntur District, Andhra Pradesh. The Company's principalactivity is manufacturing
of all kinds of Cement, solar power generation. The Ind -AS financial statements of the Company for
the year ended 31" March 2019 were authori zed for issue in accordance with a resolution passed by
the Board of Directors of the company on 30,n May 2019.

2. SignificantAccountpolicies:

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the
financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to allthe years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

a) Basisofpreparation:
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention with the exception
of certain assets and liabilities that are required to be carried at fair values as per to Ind AS . Fair value ii
the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants atthe measurement date.
b ) Use of estimates and critical accounting judgments:

In preparation of the financial statements, the company makes judgments, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources' The estimates and the associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that a re considered to be releva nt. Actual resu lts may d iffer from these estimates.
The estimate and the underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised and future periods
affected.
Significant judgments and estimates relating to the carrying values of assets and liabilities include
useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets, and investments, provision for
employee benefits and other provisions, recoverability of deferred tax assets, commitments and
contingencies.

c ) Revenue Recognition:
Sale of products.

cement: Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the company and when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have been
transferred to the buyer, usually on delivery/dispatch of the goods. lt is measured at the value of the
consideration received or receivable, net of returns, discounts, volume rebates. power: Revenue from
sale of power is recognized and adjusted against the power cost.

d) Otherincome
Interest income is recognized on time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and
the rate applicable.

e) BorrowingCosts:
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets. Until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for the intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
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borrowing cost eligible for capitalization other borrowings costs are expensed in the period in which

they are incurred. There are no long term borrowings outstanding to any financial institutions as on 31"

March 2019.

f) EmploYee Benefitsr
(i) Shortterm obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non -monetary benefits are expected to be settled wholly

within 12 months afterthe end of the period in which the employees renderthe related service are

recognized in respect of employees services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at

the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled' The liabilities are presented as

current employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet'

(ii) Other long-term employee benefit obligations

The liabilities for earned leave is not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of

the period in which the employees render therefore measured at the

present value of expected future payments ces provided by employees

up to the end of the reporting period us T:!:1^T-!3nefits 
are

discounted using the market yields at the en ave terms approximating to

the terms of the related obligations' Remeasure xperience adjustments and

changes in actuarial assumptions are recognlzed in profit or loss' The obligations are resented aS

current liabilities in the balance sheet if the entity does not have an unconditional right to defer

settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting period' regardless of when the actual

settlement is exPected to occur'

(iii) Gratuity obligations
The liability or assets recognized in the balance s

the defined benefit obligation at the end of the

defined benefit obligation is calculated annually

The present value of the defined benefit obligatic

cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds

that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation'

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined

benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in

the statement of Profit and loss'

Remeasurementgainsandlossesarisingfromexperienceadjustmentsandchangesinactuaria|
assumptions are recognized in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income'

Theyareincludedinretained :mentof changesinequityandinthebalancesheet'

changes in the present valu t obligation resulting from plan amendments or

curtailments are recognized i oss'

(iv) Defined contribution Plans

The company pays provident funds contributions to publicly administered funds as per local

regulations and superannuation funds to Llc of india Jhe company has no further payment obligations

oncethecontributionshavebeenpaid.Thecontributionsareaccountedforasdefinedcontributions
are accounted for as defined contribution plans and the contributions are recognized as employee

benefit expense when theY are due'

(v) Bonus Plans rL
The company recognizes a liability and an expense for bonuses' The company recognizes a provlslon

where contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that has created a constructive obligation '

g) IncomeTaxes:
Tax expe nse for the yea r com prises cu rre nt and deferred tax'

Current Tax is the amount of tax payable on the taxable income for the year as determined in
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accordance with the applicable tax rates and the provisions of the Income Tax Act,1951 and other
applicable tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.
Deferred tax is recognized on temporary difference between the carrying amounts of assets and

liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible tempirrary differences to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deducilble tempora ry differences
canbeutilized.Suchdeferredtaxassetsandliabilitiesarenotrecognizedifthetemporary differences
arise from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition deferred tax

liabilities are not recognized if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.

The carrying amou nt of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced

to the extent that is no longer proba ble that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part

ofthe asset to be recovered. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are

expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled orthe asset realized based on tax rates
(and tax laws)that have been enacted or substa ntively enacted by the'end of the reporting period.

Tax relating to items recognized directly in equity or other comprehensive income is recognized in
equity or other comprehensive income and not in the statement of profit and loss.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax

liabilities and assets and they are related to income taxes levied by the same tax authority, but they
intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets on liabilities will be

rea lized simultaneously.
h) Property, plant and equipment (PPE):

Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, if any. The cost of property, plant and equipment comprises of purchase price, applicable duties
and taxes, any directly attributable expenditure on making the asset ready for its intended use other
incidental expenses and interest on borrowings attributable to acquisition of qualifying fixed assets,

upto the date the asset is readyfor its intended use.

All other repair and maintenance costs, including regular servicing, are recognized in the statement of
profit and loss as incurred. When a replacement occurs, the carrying value of the replacement part is

de-recognized. Where an item of property, plant and equipment comprises major components having

different useful lives, these components are acCounted for as Separate items.

Property, plant and equipment retired from active use and held for sale are stated at the lower of their
net book value a nd net realizable value and are disclosed separately.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic

benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the

disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference

between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in profit or loss.

l) Depreciation:
Depreciationisthesystematicallocationofthedepreciableamountsof PPEover itsuseful lifeandis
provided on the straight line method over the useful lives as prescribed in schedule ll to the Act.

j) Investmentproperties:
lnvestment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation (including
property under construction for such purposes). Investments properties are measured initially at cost,

including transaction cost. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are measured at
cost model which is in accordance with Ind AS 40.
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An investment property is derecognized upon disposal or when the investment property is

permanently withdrawn from use and no further economic benefits are expected from disposal. Any

gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property is included in profit or loss in the period in which

the property is derecognized'

k) lmpairmentof assets

Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment: Intangible assets and property, plant and

equipment are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circu mstances indicate that

their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the

recoverable amount (i.e the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value in use) is determined

on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent

of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash

generating unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs. lf such asset is considered to be impaired, the

impairment to be recognized in the statement of profit and loss is measured by the amount by which

the ca rrying va lue of the asset exceeds the estimated recovera ble a mou nt of the asset. An im pa irment

loss is reversed in the statement of profit and loss if there has been a change in the estimates used to

determine the recoverable amount. The carrying amount of the asset is increased to its revised

recoverable amount, provided that this amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would been

determined (net of any accumulated amortization or depreciation) had no impairment loss been

recognized forthe asset in prioryears.

l) Inventories:
Raw Materials, Fuel, Stores and Spares and Packing Materials

Valued at lower of cost and net realizable value (NRV). However, these items are considered to be

realizable at cost, if the finished products, in which they will be used, are expected to be sold at or

above cost, cost is determined on weighted Average basis'

Materialin Transit:
Valuation of Inventories of Materials in Transit is done at Cost'

Work-in-progress (WlP) and Finished Goods

Valued at lower of cost and N RV. Cost of Finished Goods and W lP includes cost of raw materials, cost of

conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

Cost of inventories is computed on weighted average basis'

m) Provision, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent assets:

The company recognizes provisions when there is present obligation as a result of past event and it is

orobable that there will an outflow of resources and reliable estimate can be make of the amount of

the obligation. lf the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by

discounting the expected future cash flows to the net present value using an appropriate pre-tax

discounting rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and, where

appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. U nwinding of the discount is recognized in the statement

of profit and loss as finance cost. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and are adjusted to

reflect the current best estimate. At present obligation that arises from past events where it is either

not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount

cannot be made, is disclosed as a contingent liability. Contingent Liability are also disclosed when there

is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the

occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of

the countrY.
Contingent assets are not recognized in financial statements since this may result in the recognition of

income that maY never be realized.

n) Financial lnstrumentsl
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the
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contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are

directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than

financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted

from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initital recognition '

Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial asets or financial liabilities at fair

value through profit or loss are recognized immediately in profit or loss'

A. Financial Assets
(i) Financialassets carried at amortised cost

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortized cost if it is held within a business model whose

objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the

financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and

interest on the principalamount outstanding.
(ii) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it is

held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows

and selling financial assets a nd the contgractual terms ofthe financial asset give rise on specified dates

to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Further, in case where the company has made an irrevocable selection based on its business model, for

its investments which are classified as equity instruments, the subsequent changes in fair value are

recognized in other comprehensive income.

(iii) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are subsequently fair valued

through profit or loss.

(iv) The company recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial

assets which are not fair valued through profit or loss. Loss allowance for trade receivables with no

significant financing component is measured at an amount equalto lifetime ECL. For all other financial

assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equalto the 12month ECL, unless there has

been a significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition in which case those are measured at

lifetime ECL. The amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss

allowance at the reporting date to the amount that is required to be recognized is recognized as an

impairment gain or loss in statement of profit or loss.

B. Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equitY

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified according to the

substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and

an equity instrument.
Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company

after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments are recorded at the proceeds received, net of

direct issue costs.

Financial Liabilities
Trade and other payables are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs, and are

subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Any difference

between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the settlement or redemption of borrowings is

recognized over the term of the borrowing in the statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition of fi nancial instruments
The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
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financial asset expire or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition

under Ind AS 109. A Financial liability ( or a part of financial liability) is derecognized from the

company's balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or

expl res.

Fair value of financial instruments
In determining the fair value of its financial instruments, the Company uses a variety of methods and

assumptions that are based on market conditions and risks existing at each reporting date. The

methods used to determine fair value include discounted cash flow analysis, available quoted market

prices and dealer quotes. All methods of assessing fair value result in general approximation of value'

and such value maY not be realized'

Offsetting fi nancial Instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where

there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle

on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right

must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and

in the event of default, i nsolvency or bankruptcy ofthe company or the cou nterparty'

o)Earning Per Share:

The basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/(loss) for the year attributable to the

equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year'

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, profit/(loss) for the year attributable to the

equity shareholders and the weighted average number of the equity shares outstanding during the

yeartheadjustedfortheeffectsofa||diIutivepotentiaIequityshares
p) Cash and cash equivalents:

cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and demand deposits with banks' cash equivalents

are short-term balances (with an original maturity of three months or less), highly liquid investments

that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of

changes in value.

that engages in business activities from which

erating results are regularly reviewed by the

sions for wh ich discrete fi na ncia I i nformation is

defined in Ind AS 108, the chief Executive Officer will

evaluate the company's performance and allocates resources based on an analysis of various

performanceindicatorsbybusinesssegmentsandgeographicsegments.
r) Government Grants:

Grants from the government are recognized at fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that

the grant will be received and the Company will comply wit

Government grants relating to income are deferred and re s over the period

necessary to match ttrem with costs they are intended 1 ted within other

lncome.
Government grants relaung to the purchase of property, plant and equipment are included in non-

current liabilities as deferred income and are.r"dit"d to profit and loss on a straight line basis overthe

expected lives of the related assets and presented within other income' The benefit of a government

loan at below current market rate of interest istreated as a government grant'

s).Leases
Lease-Rentals payable under leases are cha rged to the statement of profit and loss

t) Rounding off amounts
All amounts disclosed in the financial statement and notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs

as per the requirement of Schedule | | l, unless otherwise stated'
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SRI CHAKRA CEMENT LIMITED

Note No: Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31st March 2019

Equity share Capital

Opening Balance

Changes during the year

Balance at the end

Note No:9(ii) Other Equity { in lakhs

Baf ance as on 01.O4.2OL7 43t6

Profit for the year L2

Re-Measurement of defined
benefit plans (Net of Taxes)

Other Prior

Other Adjustments 1159

Balance as on 31.03.2018

Profit for the year

Re-Measurement of defined
benefit plans (Net of Taxes)

Interest and Royalty waived

Other Adjustments -7

Balance as on 31.03.2019 492r

The accompanying notes form an

As per our report of even date

For DVR & cO,
Chartered Accountants
(FRN No 007s84s)
sd/-
D Venkata Ramana

Proprietor
M No: 205469

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 30/05/2019

integral paft of financial statements
For and On behalf of the Board

For Sri Chakra Cement Limited

sd/- sd/-
N Krishna Mohan K Vijay Kumar

Chairman Joint Managing Director
DIN:00698772 DIN:00769568

sd/- sd/-
P Rajendra Babu NSRV Prasad

Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
M No: 5934
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SNII CHNTNA CEMENT LIMITED

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.O3.201-9

A. Cash Flow From Activities

Profit before tax

685
Depreciation and Amortisation E

1203 )

I nterest on waived as Per BIFR Scheme 36
Finance Cost (2)
fairualue surplus on mutual funds 1so)
P-fit on sale of lnvestments ( E

P-fit on sale of Investments ( Debt

430
(lncrease)/Decrease in trade receivables

(lncrease)/Decrease in inventorles
1a1

se in other bank balances
1-OO

(lncrease rease in other finmial assets (7'l
( I ncre ase in other current assets

L452
rea in lnvestments-Current

( | ncrea in current tax assets
1s6)

)/Decrease in Investrents-Non Current (16o7
creaSe se in non current loans

7
I ncreaSe (4s)

tn in Non Current Assets 345
ln in other trade

Increa in other shrt term
lncreas Decrea se ircther financial liabilities

Decre in cash credit 7
Decrease in other short term Provlslons
Decrea se in other cu rrent liabilities

( Decrea balances ( def Tax

10
lncome taxes Paid 2
Remeasurement of benefit plan

9a
Employee benefits ex6 withdrawn

94
Ind As adiustmens ba|ance re!!fl!g!9Pl9yl9!:
Fair value surplus on n4gg|fu4:lryflldrlfry!

ans of previous Year
5

Remeasuremenl Surplus on emP benefit
(4e1)

Net cash from activities

19471
PaVments for 2
Fair value on mutual funds

150
Profit on sale of Investments ( Equi

37
Profit on sale of Investmen!:l !s!I

Net cash activities

( 36)
lnterest 963

1190

Government granrs 39
term provlslonS r203

interest on t295
Net Cash from activities

of financial 262
cash and cash ts at the

As per our report of even date

For DVR & CO,

Chartered Accountants
(FRN No OOTsa4S)

sd/-
D Venkata Ramana
Proprietor
M No:205469
Place: Hyderabad
Date" 30/Os/2Ot9

For and on behalf of the Board
For sri chakra Cement Limited

sd/- sd/-
N Krishna Mohan K Vijay Kumar

Chairman loint Managing Director

DIN: 00698772 DIN: 00769568

sd/- 50/ -

P Rajendra Babu NSRV Prasad

company Secretary Chief Financial officer
M No:6934





l

I

\

t

I
i{
,l

I

SRI CHAKRA CEMENT LIMITED

Note No: 3(i) Financial Assets- Investments { in lakhs

Inventories are valued at lower of cost and market value

Note No: 6(i) Financial Assets ( Current)- Investments

Investments in Mutual Funds are remeasured at fair value based on the NAV as

on 3].st March 2019

Note No: 6(ii) Financial Assets ( Current)- Trade Receivables-

Particulars as at 31Et Mareh. 2019 2018
Investments in Sri Subrahmanya Solar Projects (LLP) 2r3 a>o
Total 

l 2r3 : 156

Note No: 3(iif Financial Assets- Non Current Loans

zotg. 2018,
Unsecured considered good

Deposits with Government Departments/Others 3520 7682
Less: Reclassification of Tax assets under Cr Assets

Total financial asseits non current 3520 26d2

Note No: 3(iii) Other Non Current Financial Assets

Particulars as at 3lst March 2019 zaLa .

Advance for ourchase of land-------A 1463 1458

Bank deposits having maturity over 12 months 184 230

FDs fair value to be shown seperatey- Non Cur Portion 45

FDs fair value to be shown seperatey- Cur Portion t3
Sub Total-------B !7L

t647 1629

Note No: 4 Other Non Current Assets

Particulars as at 31st Mareh 2019 2018
Unsecured considered eood

Long Term Trade receivables 29
Provision for doubtful debts 27 27

Sub Total 2 2

Prepaid expenses 32 45
,Total

34 tl8

Prepaid expenses include unamortised portion of fair value of FDs as per IND AS
109 Non current portion amounting to Rs 31.56 Lakhs for 2018-19

Note No: 5 Inventories

2019 2018
Raw Materials 77 55
Work In Progress 373 232
Finished Goods 109 L49
Stores and Spares 1189 906
Packing Materials 81 93
Coal L47 227
Total 197s 1653

Particulais as at 31st Marih mLg 2018
Investments in Mutual Funds

Fair value through Profit and Loss Account 0 46



SRI CHAKRA CEMENT LIMITED

No trade receivables are due from any directors or other officers of the company with jointly or severally
with any person or any related party
Trade receivables are non interest bearing and are generally on terms of around 30 days

Note No: 5(iii) Financial Assets ( Current)- Cash and Cash Equivalents { in lakhs

Prepaid expenses include unamortised portion of fair value of
currentportionamounting to Rs 13 56 Lakhs for 2018-19

Note No 9(iii): Equity Share Capital

FDs ND 109

Particulars as at 3lst Maie h 20L9 zo18

Cash on Hand I 8

Balance with bank in current account 45 283
Deposit- maturity over 12 months 230

Deoosit- maturitv between 3 to l-2 months 84

:6

Long term deposits(more than 12M, to be shown as NCA 230

Deposit- maturity between 3 to 72M, to be shown as CA 84

Note No: 5(iv) Bank Balances other than mentioned in Note No 5(iii)

Pafticulars as at 31st March 20L9 2018

Deposit- maturity between 3 to 12Months 58 84

Note No: 5(v) Financial Assets ( current)- Financial Loans

Particulars as at 31st March 20t9 2018

Advances for purchase of

Raw Materials 202 L78
Store and Spares LO7 't-o7

Advance to Employees 25 57

Other Advances 1665 L754
Short Term Deposits 140 501

Advance for land 1458

l

Less: Advance for land to be shown as NCA 1458

Current tax Assets to be shown seperately 279

Note No: 7 Financial Assets ( Currentl- Current tax Assets

Note No: 8 Other Current Assets

Particulars as at 31st March 2019 2018

Prepaid expenses 28 19

Other receivables 19

38

Particulars 31.03,2019 31.03,2018

No Amt No Amt

Authorised: Eouitv Shares of Rs 10/- each face Value 20000000 2000 20000000 2000

lssued: Equity Shares of Rs 10/- each face Value 9000000 900 9000000 900

Subscribed and Paid Up: Equity Shares of Rs 10/- each face Value 9000000 900 9000000 900

Tota 9000000 900 9000000 900
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SRI CHAKRA CEMENT LIMITED

Reconciliation of number of shares outstanding at the begining and at the end of the year & Chnges in the
{'n lakhs

Terms/Rights/Restrictions atatched to Equity Share:

The CompanV has one class of shares- Equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10/- Each holder of equity shares is

entitled to one vote per share
shares in the

Share n

Partieulars 31.O3.2019 31,03.2018
Number Amt Number Arirt

Authorised: Shares of Rs 10/- each:

Balance at the begining 20000000 2000 20000000 2000

Chanses durine the vear
Bal:iiii€-at,the end 20fi)0000 20oo 20000000 2000

lssued, Subscribed and paid Up: Equity Shares of Rs 10/-
each

Balance at the begining 9000000 900 9000000 900

Changes during the year

Balance at the end 90{X)000 900 9000000 900

Particiildir 31.03,20X9 31.03,2018
Number % NuinbEt %

Sri K Vijay Kumar LO78244 11.98 LO78244 11 98

Smt K V Nagalalitha 1964730 21- 83 1964730 21 83

Sri VVSRAnianeyulu 880744 979 880744 979
smt V V Nagalakshmi 1-877990 20.87 7877990 20.87

M/s Krishna Rama Industrial Inv Ltd s69370 6.33 s69370 633

Note No: 1O(i) Financial Liabilities- Borro

Loans from Related parties

Government Loan- Unsecured
Sales tax Deferment Loan

Royalty ( MRT) Deferment loan

Reconciliation of Government Loan

Face Value of Loan - Sales Tax and MRT

Less: Fair Value surplus- Government
'Fiirivalued,Goveinmeni Loan as pet tND

Sales Tax and MRT Deferent
The Company was sanctioned a deferment package by the Government of AP in respect of the Sales Tax and

Royalty for a period of 7 years w.e f. 16 07.2015 vide GO Dated 16.O7.201,5. Accordingly, the company availed

the said deferment of Sales tax up to 30.06 2017

As per the IND As, the company has opted to apply the fair value measurements for the deferment loans in

respect of Sales and Royalty as on the date of transition i e 01.04.2016 and further loans received till 201& 19

through amortised cost using discounted value method @ 11% (Rate Generally applicable for borrowing
outside). The difference between the fair value and carrying amount is classified as "Deferred Govt Grant"

Maturity Profile of the Deferred Sales Tax and Royalty deferment



SRI CHAKRA CEMENT LIMITED

As per the terms and conditions of the agreement entered with the dealers and transporters, the security
deposits being ineterest bearing and to be adjusted against the supply of materials at the time oftermination
and not payable in cash, and hence prima facie, this is not a financial liability. As such the same is valued at
carrying amount in the IND As financial statements

The Company provldes for expenses towards gratuity and compensated absences provided to its employees which is
recognised at the present value ofthe amount payable determined based on an independent external acturial valuers

report as at the balance sheet date based on the ed cost unit method
The Acturial gain/ loss as per the report submitted by the Actuary has been considered as an item of Other
Comprehensive Income in P&L account for the year ended 31 03.2019 after considering the deferred tax item on the
same as per the applicable rate and the liability has been reuduced to the extent of such gain.

Disclosure required pertaining to Employee Benefits as per Ind AS 19 is given below

Paiticulara

Compensated Absenes
'(Non-Funddd)

31.03:2019 31.03.2018 31,03.2019 31,03.2018

Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of present value of obligations

Defined Benefit Obligation as at the beginning of the year 253 240 A< 38

Current Service Cost 2'J- 19 13 A

lnterest Cost L9 18 3

Acturial Loss/ Gain 11 7 ( 1s) 0

Benefits paid (2s ) (6) 0

Reionciliation irf opening bnd Closing Balences of fair value of Plan assets 31"o*?Qler 31.O3.2018
Fair Value of Plan assets at the beging of the year L87 199
Exoected rate of return on Plan Assets L4 1,4

Acturial Loss/ gain 1 (1)

Employers' contribution 0 o
benefits paid (L4l (25)

Exoected Return on Plan Assets

Acturial Losses/ gain on Plan Assets

Fair Value of Plan Assets

Present Value of Obligations

I



I

Current Service Cost 21_ l9 13 4
net Interest on Obligations 6 4 3 3

Acturial Loss/ gain recognised during the year 0 0 (1s ) 0
past Service Cost 0 0 0 0

Experises recognisdd klstatement af Profit arid ldgs 26 23 2 7

Amount Recognised in the Other Comprehensive Income

Acturial Changes arising from

Exoerience Adiustments on Plan Liabilities 11 11 0 3

Changes in financial asumptions (11) 0 3

Return on Plan assets excluding amount included in the Net
Intereston NetDefined liability/(Asset) above

7 I 0 0

t

LIC 1995-98 table applied for Service mortality rate Indian Assured lives Mortaility (2006-08) Ult
Discount rate p.a 7.70% 7 70%
Retirement Age 60 vears 60 vears
Rate Escalation in Salary p.a. 7 00% 7 00%
Rate employee turnover L% I%

year 1 25 22 6 5
year 2 20 8 2 2

year 3 22 19 1 2

Yea 4 30 1-9 2 2

Year 5 26 26 3 2

nex 5 Years 111 1,28 5 6

at
Discount rate - 1 percent increase 264 230 37 40
Discount rate - 1 percent decrease 321 287 46 51
Salary escalation- 1 percent increase 321 281 46 51
Salary escalation- 1 percent decrease 264 229 37 40
withdrawal rate- 1 oercent increase 292 254 4I 45
withdrawal rate- 1 percent decrease 288 251, 41- 44

t
T,
I.

I

SRI CHAKRA CEMENT LIMITED

Deferred Government Grant comprises of -Fair vlue interest benefit below market/ Nil rate of interest pertaining
to te sales tax and royalty deferment recognised as Government Grant as per IND A5 20 and recognised as Grant
Income and amortised over the oeriod of deferment in P&L account as ncome Statement approach basis

P. articulars 31.03.2019 31.03.2018
Ooenins Balance 2935 261-a

Amount recoqnised durins the vear on ST Deferment 0 4t6
Amount recognised during the year on MRT Deferment 1EA 247
Sub-Total 3189 32a2
Less: Revenure recoqnised in P&L Account 472 347

2935



I SRI CHAKRA CEMENT LIMITED

The Advances from Customers are received in the normal course of business and adjusted against subsequent

5U

Note No 17(i): Revenue From

Particulars 31.03.2019 31.03.2018

Sale of Products (Net) L9L37 19605

Adiustments as per IND AS

Add: Excise Dutv 0 8L7

Less: Trade and Cash Discounts t\t 1105

Revenue from Operations- Total 18820 1e317.

Revenue from Operations representing revenue received from sale of Porducts include the excise duty and

excludes discounts alloed on the same which is recognised as per the IND AS-18

{ in lakhs

Deferred tax Liabilitv/(Asset) on difference in

Tax impact on the temporary differences due to Ind as Adj

Def. tax Liab on temp Differences recognised in P&L

Def. tax Asset on temo Differences recognised in P&L

Carry forward of prev yer balance on adjustments

Partictdais, 31.03.2019 31.03.2018

Trade Pavables 2309 7433

Total 2309 L433

There are no dues to micro and small enterprises at the reorting date (As at 3103.2019 Rs NIL). This

information as required to be disclosed under Micro Small and Medium enterprises Development Act, 2006 has

been determined to the extent of such parties have been iedntified on the basis of information available with

the Comoanv.

Partieirlar's 31.03;2019 31,03.2018

Current maturities of Lonq term Debt- Unsecured L9 57

Expenses Payable L265 624

Total 1285 682

Parliculars 31.03.2019 31,03.2018

Provision for gratuity 75 21

Provision for compensated absences 6 )
Total 30 26

Partiaulars 31.0!!.2019'l 31.03.2018:

Advance from Customers 843 1465

Others 277 1-22

Tota t1r4 1586



SRI CHAKRA CEMENT LIMITED

Note No 17(ii): Other Income ? in lakhs
Particulan 31.0!I.2019 31,03.2018
Interest Income 54 61
Scrap Sales 37 230
Misc Income 5 2

Profit on sale of Investments ( Equitv 0 150
Profit on sale of Investments ( Debt) 3/
Investments in Mutual Funds- fair value surolus 2

Government Grant 472 347
Interest on fir value of bank FD's 13 5

Totil other ihcome 581 834

Note No Cost of Materials Consumed

Paftlcular,i' 31.03.2019 31.03,2018
Limestone 7243 ILZJ

Other additives 7672 1593
packing material 891 784
Stores and Spares 638 1306

Total 4444 4908

Particulais 31.03.2019 31.03.2018
Opening Stock

Work in Progress z5z 94
Finished Goods L49 52

Total opening Balance -A 381 t46
Closing Stock

Work in Progress 373
Finished Goods 109 r49

Total Closing Balance -B 48r 380

Total Chanse in the inventories (Netl lA-Bl {100) (2341

Note No Benefit Expense

PaiticularS". 31.03.2019 31.03.2018
Sa la ries 1054 97L
Remuneration to Directors 732 L32
Contribution to PF and Other Funds 58 48
Workmen and Staff Welfare Exoenses 3L7 38s
Total 1561 1535
Ind Adjustment

Less: Defined benefit gain/loss to be shown under other coprehensive
lncome 0 (21

Tax Adiustment on the above 0 0

Net EmployeerBinefiterpense I 1551 1534

Note No l8livl: Finance cost

Pa rticqlars 31.03.2019 31.03.2018
Interest- Others 53 50

lnterest calculated on financial liabilities/assets as per effective rate

Saies Tax 392 303

Royalty 80 44

52s 383

Note No and Amortisation

,Partieulars 31.03.2019 31:03.2018

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment 682 685

T

I
i
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SRI CHAKRA CEMENT LIMITED

Note No 18(vii): Other Expenses

Power, Fuel:

Fartic!lars 3i:031019 31i;O3:2018
Power Cost 2723 7678
Coal Cost 5145 45t7
Tatsl 7269 6190.

Direct Admn and etc
Peftlbdlaii . 31.O3.2019, 31.03.2018
Direct Manufacturing Exoenses 116 'J-29

Repairs and Maintenance

Bui ldi ngs 7 a5
Plant and machinery 73 95
Others 439 457

Sub Total €35, s65
Administration Expenses

Travelling and Conveyance 65 ro2
Directors' Travelling expenses 2 1

Printing and Stationery L0 14
Communcation Expenses 11 11
Legal and professional Charges 2

I nsu ra nce 4 1

Audit Fees and Expenses 2 2

Postage & telegraphs 5
Rent 32 32
Rates and taxes 18 46
Security Service Charges 52 44
Bank Charges t2
Lease rentals 38 44
Donations 6 5
Loss on chits L45
Misc Expenses 37t 205
lncome tax oaidfor 201,6-77 0 18
Solar plant expenses J] 15
sub Total 649 ,703,,

Selling Expenses

Fright, packing and forwarding Charges 4tt9 4097
Advertisement and Publicitv L43 329
5ub Total 4262 ::'4lza

Ind As Adjustment
Prepaid Expenses written off 13 5
Grand,.Total as perlND as r282a' 12018

Audit Fees and Expenses

Particulars 31-03.2011) 31.03.2018
Statutory Auditors

Statutory Audit o.75 o.75
Reimbursement of Exoenses 0.05 0.05

fax Auditors- Taxation matters 0.L5 0.15
Cost Auditors- Cost Auditors o.75 1.00
Secretarial Auditors- Secretarial Audit 150
Total 1.70, 3;45i



SRI CHAKRA CEMENT LIMITED
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SRI CHAKRA CEMENT LIMITED

The Board of Directors (BOD) has oveall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the company's risk

management framework and thus established a risk management policy to identify and analyse the risk faced by

the comapny. Risk management systems are reviewed by the BOD periodically to reflect changes in market

conditions and the comapny's activities. The company through its training and management standards and

op a dis ve control environme

ons. The rsees now manageme

policies revlews the risk mana

ersight r nternal Audit underta

and procedures, the results ofwhich are reported to the audit committee'

Note No: 2 Financial Risk

financial risks:

The board of directors regularly

management of these risks.

reviews these risks and approves the risk management policies, which covers the

Credit Risk:

credit Risk is the risk of financial loss to the company if the customer or counterparty to the financial instruments

fails to meet its contractual obligations and arises principally from the company's receivables, treasury operations

and other ooerations that are in the nature of lease

Receivables:
The company's exposure to credit risk is influenc acteristic of each customer. The

company extends credit to its customers in the considering the factors such as

financial reliabilitv of customers. The company the risk with respect to trade

receivables as low, as its customers are located in in largely independent markets'

The company maintains adequate security deposists from its customers incase of wholesale and retail segment. In

case of institutional segment, credit risks are mitigated by way of enforceable securities. The exposures with thc

goverment are generally unsecured but they are considering good. However, unsecured credits are extended

based on creditworthiness of the customers on case to case basis

Trade receivables are wratten off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. Such as a debtor declaring

bankruptcy or failing to engage in a repayment plan with the company and where there is a probability of default,

the company creates a provislon based on expected credit loss for trade receivables under simplified approach as

below:

Note No: 23(ii) Provision for Expected Credit Losses

Trade receivables as at 31.03.2019
I in lakhs

Financial instruments and cash deposlts

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Expected credit loss

Carrying amount of trade receivables

net of impairement

Trade receivables as at 31.03.2018

Expected Loss Rate

Expected credit loss

Carrying amount of trade receivables

net of impairement

I

i

I



SRI CHAKRA CEMENT LIMITED



In order to achieve thlgverall objective, the company's capital management, amongst other things, aims to

ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define

capital structure requirements. There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing

loans / borrowings. There are no significant changes in the objectives, policies or processes for managing

caoital durins the vears ended 31-03-2019 and 31-03-2018.

Note No: 25 Information on names of Related parties and nature of Relationship as required by Ind AS 24

on Related party disclosures for the year ended 31st March 2019'

Nama of,the.PFe4or .Daiieneticn

Sri N Krishna Mohan Chairman & Managing Director

SriVVSRAnjaneyulu Executive Director

Smt K V Nagalalitha D rector

Sri P Ramamoorthy Independent Director

5r K P Patnaik lndeoendent Director

Sri Nemani Gopal w.e.f 28 05 18 Independent Director

Dr A S Narayana lndependent Director

B. Personnel

Name of the Key Management Personnel DEslsriatton

Sri K Viiav Kumar Joint Managing Director & CEO

Sri P Raiendra Babu CompanV Secretary

Sri NSRV Prasad Chief Financial Officer

SriVVSRAnjaneyulu Executive Director

Name of the enteprise / ComPanY

M/s Aditya Spinners Limited

M/s Envean Leasing and Investments Limited

M/s litharam Finance and Investments Limited

M/s Krishnarama Industrial Investments Limited

D. Relatives of KMP and Directors

Nin:ie O{ thetelatlve- of FMP Nature of retatlonship

Smt K V Nasalalitha W/o Sri K Vijay Kumar

Smt V V Naealakshmi W/oSri VVSRAnianevulu

E. Related party balances as on 31.03'2019 (Rs. In Lakhs)
{ in lakhs

i. in relation to Remuneration

Neiird of.thci.KMP Aripunt

Sri. N Krishna Mohan 48 00

Sri. K Viiav Kumar 42.00

Sri.VVSRAnianevulu 42.OO

ii, ln relation to Car Lease Rentals

Name of the KMP Amount

Sri.VVSRAnianeyulu 15.00

Sri. K Viiav Kumar 15 00

iv, ln relation to Advance for Purchase of Land

Name o{ the Ente.Prise. Amount

M/s Envean Leasing and Investments Limited s.00

v. ln relation to Lease Rentals

Name of the Enterprise Amount

Smt K V Nasalalitha for land use for solar unit 18.00

SRI CHAKRA CEMENT LIMITED

Nam6 oflhe Enterpris€ oJ.KMP Amount

M/s Envean Leasing and Investments Limited 1s0.75

M/s Sri Narasimha Cements and Power Limited 1'J-2.O2



SRI CHAKRA CEMENT TIMITED

NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the 37'n Annual General Meeting of the members of SRI CHAKRA CEMENT
LIMITED will be held on Monday, the 23'o day of SEPTEMBER, 2019 at 12.00 Noon, at the Registered Office
located atD.No.27 14,/1, Kannavari Thota, L" Floor, Beside Central Excise Office, Guntur; A.P.-522!04 Io
transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

Item No. 1:Adoption Of FinancialStatements:-
To receive consider and adopt the Audited Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended on 31" March
2019 and the Balance Sheet as on that date and the Reports of Directors and Auditors thereon.

Item No.2:
To appoint ing
eligible.

Item No.3:
To appoint ano
being eligible, offers herself for reappointment.

Item No4:
"Resolved ad with 140(2) of the Companies Act,
2013 and Rules as amended to date, pursuant to recommendation of the of the Audit Committee of the
company and pursuant to the proposal of the Audit Committee of the Board and recommendation of the
board, M/s Satyanarayana & Co., Chartered Accountants (Firm Regn.No.0035805), Secunderabad be and
are hereby appointed as the statutory auditors of the company, to hold office from the conclusion of this
Annual General Meeting until the conclusion of the 41" Annual General Meeting on such remuneration as

may be fixed bythe Board in consultation with the auditors in place of the retiring auditors viz., M/s DVR

& Co., Chartered Accountants, who have resigned as auditors".

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

Item No.5:

RESOLVE pursuant to t on ofSection 148(3) a applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made there undel the remuneration payable to M/s. Bisati & Co., Cost
Accountants, appointed by the Board of Directors as Cost Auditors to conduct the audit ofthe cost records
of the companyforthefinancial year20!8-19 and alsoforthe year2O79-2O amountingto Rs. 1,00,000/-
(Rupees One Lakh only) per year as also the payment of GST as applicable and re-imbursement of out of
pocket expenses incurred in connection with the aforesaid audit, be and is hereby ratified and confirmed."

(Explanation to ltem No: 5: The Board of Directors of the Company on 12.02.2019 and L4.08.2019,

appointed M/s Bisati & Co, Cost Accountants for conducting cost audit for 2018-19 and also for the year

2OI9-2O at a remuneration of Rs 1, 00,000/- Per Year the Board recommends their approval for your

approval at the ensuing annua I general meeting. None of the directors are interested in the resolution).

By Order ofthe Board
For Sri Chakra Cement Limited

sd/_
K Vijay Kunrar

Joint Managing Director
Place: Hyderabad,
Date: 14.08.2019

the



-RtCHATGAcEMENIUMITED

a)

b)

c)

d)

e)

I

!
I
I

l,

t

c)

Member entitled to attenct and vote is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote instead of himself and the

proxy need not be a r.to.r. prories in orderto be valid must be received by the company not less than 48 hours

l",j:::JH:llXt'oro*u ro,. onry 50 members and hotding in assresate not more than 10 percent of the total

share capital of the company carrying voting rights members holding more than 10 percent of the total share

capitaloftheco.p.ny.rrryingvotingrightsmayappointsasinglepersonasproxyandsuchpersonshallnotact

il::::tff;liti;::'#;:ing meeting, onry such joint horder who is higher in the order names will be

the enclosed Attendance Slip' duly filled in' for

nce Slips will not be distributed at the Meeting'

pany shall remain closed on 23'o September 2019

ow being sent by electronic mode to the shareholders

pany.

rs of the Company is also available on the website of the

Company www.srichakracement'com'

f)

Place: HYderabad,
Date: 14.08.2019

i:xil:$#.[:y;:ffi?j ]irti"?#:. ", 
the forthcomins Annuar Generar Meetins (in pursuance of Reg27

of the Listing Regulations))

BY Order ofthe Board

For Sri Chakra Cement Limited
sd/_

K ViiaY Kumar

Joint Managing Director

TheinstruGtionsandprocedureforsharehoIdersvotingineIectronicmeansa'eprovidedhereunder:
Seotember 2019 at 09.30 a m

o-"t" ""a 
t'-" 

"f 
commencement of e-voting

SeDtember 2019 at 05 00 P m
o-rt"-t" 

""a 
tirn. of conclusion of e-voting

ffie voting for shareholders

in phvsical and demat form

Name Of The Director
Date Of Birth
NationalitY

N Krishna Mohan
oLl07 /L940
INDIAN

Corttrtt*a" ettOuate, Professional
\/i- Aaltr4 And ACS

MA
Qualifications

She Has About More Than 25

Years Of Industrial ExPerience'E*;it"f t Specific Functional Area He Has About More I han Four uecduc> vl
Experience In The Management of The Affairs

to4rt94

Companies*

l.Aditya SPinners Limited
2. south India Cements Limited

3.Krishnarama Industrial Investment Limited

4. Saketh lT Solutions Private Limited

5. Jitharam Finance And Investments Limited

6.Sri Narasimha Cements And Power Limited

Nil

l.Prabhu Cements Limited

2. Envean Leasing And

lnvestment Limited
3. Krishna Rama Industrial

lnvestment Limited
4. Aditya SPinners Limited

ch"-ffi;7 M"-b* l^ Th" committees of
The Boards Of Companies In Which He ls

Director ( Incl This Co)
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RegOff :DNo.27l4l1,lstFloor, Kannavari Thota BesideCentral ExciseOffice, Guntur-522004.

Admin office : 6-3-668/10/66, Durganagar Colony, Punjagutta, Hyderabad - 500 082

Tef : 040- 66612374 Email : srichakracement@gmail.com, Web:www.srichakracement com

Unit-1 : Sri Narasimhapuri, KARAMPUDI - 522 614, GUNTUR - Dist, Andhra Pradesh

Unit-2 : Annamarjupet (V), Jami Mandal, VIZINAGARAM - Dist, Andhra Pradesh

Branches : GU NTU R - 97 0321 901 02, NARASARAOPEf - S7 0321 I I 26 | 1 28,

Tt R U PATH | - 97 0321 I 1321 005. Vt JAYAWADA -97032 1 9006. 99660 1 I 1 49.

vtSAKHAPATNAM - 9885289700, CHENNAI - 07299929305




